
UNITED NATIONS

General_Assembly
FORTY-FOURTH SESSION

Official Records

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 5th MEETING

Chairman: Mr. GHEZAL (Tunisia)

CONTENTS

GENERAL DEBATE (continued)

ORGANIZATION OF WORK

Tlll~ rClr,.'urd J" ...uhJ~I.·t hI ..·,)rr~ ... t1tm
(\lrrl'\.'lltln.. ,tllHlld hl, ..cO! undrr the 'Ign.aturl.' (,f ,I IllclllhL'r Ill' thl' dl'll!~.lIl1m ..'llOn'rncd

n,iJrm /I'lt" lruk llftlit· dal" of fuMI( alum tu till: ChIef 1'( lht' Of1kIJ! Rl'l.:ord .. h.lHU1~ Sl·... Il11Il. R(llll1l DC~ 750,
~ ('mlll.'d ~atll\n .. PI.I/.I. .lIld m\.·,lrpl\rah.'d 11\ ,I \,IIP~ \lllh", rl'l..'11fll

89-56098 1591S (E)

SECOND COMMITTEE
5th meeting

held on
Thursday, 5 October 1989

at 10 a.m.
New York

Distr. GENERAL
AlC.2144/SR.5
17 October 1989
ENGLISH
ORIGINAL: SPANISH

/. , .
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.2144/SR.5
English
Page 2

GEUERAL DEBATE (GQ.l'lt ~.nUE;l~U

1. Mr, _RO~RNrA~ (Mexico) said that joint action and shared respon~ibility were
the only means of guaranteeing the stable, balanced growth of the international
economy. The developed countries must urgently recognize their responsibility and
act accordingly. In addition to demonstrating by their deeds that they recognized
the role that the United Nations should play in the search for solutions to the
major economic problems confronting the international community, the developed
countries must participate in the process of international adjustment by exercising
strict fiscal discipline, effectively co-ordinating their non-inflationary growth
policies and opening up their markets. The developing countries, for their part,
must resolutely cOutinue the process of transforming their economic structures in
order to make them more modern and competitive. That would stimulate growth and
equity, which had been put forward as development objectives and would enable the
developing countries to more fully integrate themselves in, and have a greater
influence on, the international economy.

2. Acceleration of the modernization process in developing countries must be
based on the genuine incorporation o~ technical progress in the productive
process. Economic co-operation and international technology were tools that could
help those countries carry out changes to reduce their long-standing excessive
dependency on the industrialized countries. Technical innovation efforts must be
closely linked to economic policy objectives and have a direct impact on
produr.tivity and growth. Tolecommunications, micro-electronics, the computer
indllstry dnd other advanced tochnologies must be priorities for the Governments of
the developing countries.

3. Those hopes, howev~r, could not be realized if resources continued to flow out
o( t.hotie countries for d(~ht servicing. The solution to the problem lay in
reconciling two fundamental aspects: subst.antial reduction in the amount of debt
s8rvicp nnd principal, And the establishment of new financial flows for
c!ovfl}npmenL In that connection, the Unit.ed Nations could be of great value by
underscorinq tho necessity for cruditors to amend thejr tax, regulatory and
,\l~counl. inq practices in order to rucili tat.e t.he reduction of debt and debt
:;nn/ j l:e. Tho Un i led Nations eau In <'1150 underscorl:l the vi tal importance of adequate
qUi\rr\nt(!(!~ i n ~il[ ryl n<J out such opl~ra.tiolls. Moreover, the mechanisms of
d(!lJt-~i{'rvi~e reduction mu:,t involve not. only the commercial banking system, but
~}9n int"rn~tionnl findncl~l orgdnizations and official creditors.

4. The sound growth o[ the world economy would not be possible 8S long as the
current situation, characterized by deteriorating torms of trade, growing
protectionism and high intorest rates, persisted. The State's role as a guiding
force in economic activity and an active agent of social well-being must be
reassessed. The United Nations must clarify the fundamental criteria that should
govern the economic activities of the modern State, at both the national and
internationol level. The international development strategy for the fourth United

I • ••

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



AlC.2144/SR.5
English
Page 3

Nations development decade and the special session of the Gendral Assembly to he
convened in April 1990 should include as essential items' reversing the transfer
of resources out of the developln~ countries, expanding access to international
markets and accelerating the ~bsorption of new technologies by developing economies
so that they could modernize their productive plants and combat world ecological
deterioration. Those items should be approached, in every case, with a view to the
necessity of defining the basic elem~nts of a new type of equitable and competitive
growth and the eradication of absolute poverty in the developing countries. The
approach of ~he future strategy must be flexible and pragmatic, so that it could bf~

adapted to a rapidly changing world economy. To that end, it would be 'cry
important for the strategy to include mechanisms for following up its
implementation and development.

5. In view of their history of pollution-generating activities, the
industrialized countries had a greater responsibility to channel financial and
technological resources into combating environmental deterioration. New mechanisms
of international co-oparation must be explored so that the developing coul1trie~

could have free access to scientific information and to the acquisition of
non-polluting technologies more easily. The United Nations conference on
environment and development proposed for 1992 should examine and propose solution:;
to the economic obstacles which those countries faced in adequately protecting the
environment. Those proposals should consider that environmental protection and
economic development must be inextricably linked, that one must not preclude the
other, and that new financial cOllditionalities must not be imposed in the process.
Similarly, it was necessary to respect the development objectives and priorities of
the countriea of the South and their sov8reignty over their natural resources.

6. Moreover, the regional commissions and the specialized economic agenclp~ of
the Unitad Nations must encourage the reformulation of general schemes (or econolnlc
co-op~ration and review their work procedures, approaches and interrelationships.
The limited resources, the vast scope nnd complexity of tIle work to be done and th0
lack of time made it necessary to avoid duplication and to move forward with
specific complementary sectoral projects.

7. Mr. KRYZHANOVSKX (Ukrainian Soviet Socia1.ist Republic) saie t.hat the neen for
a joint appro~ch to solving economic problems and for all States to endeavour to
find solutions which took into aCcoullt a balance of interests, had been recognized
among the positive trends characterizing intprnational life, economic proqrQ~S h~d

not been commensurate with the politiC'nl progress achi.evl~d. 'rhe sit.uation of t.ho
developing countries, which had not overcome backw~rdnc~s and eXlernal debt dn~

which were experiencing a const8nt development crisi~, was particularly ~larmil.y.

8. Recent events clearly demonstrated that the current system of internation~l

economic relations did not respond to the interests of the vast majority of Statos
and was growing less and less predictable, providing confirmation of the system's
inability to influence the complex macro-economic procesRes taking place as n
result of profound structural transformations, the accelerated pace of scientifir
and technological revolution and changes in the international division of labor.
Other destabilizing factors in internation~l ccouumlc relations included Lh~

/ • t •

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.2144/SR.5
English
Page 4

unresolved problems of the international monetary system, fluctuating in interest
rates and inflationary processes.

9. The difficult economic situation of many countries derived from their enormous
military expenditures, which far exceeded their means, and from the continued
militarization of their economies. That policy must be offset by projects to
develop productive forces, in other words by a democratic socio-economic policy
capable of guaranteeing employment, and uniting and motivating millions of people.
The Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic hop~d that, under United Nations auspices,
genuine plans would be elaborated for shifting the production of weapons toward~

peaceful purposes, which would respond to the interest of all countries and all
peoples.

10. In his delegation's view, the report of the Secretary-General on the
principles of international economic security (A/44/2l7) was positive in that it
proposed to use the United Nations as a centre of world macro-economic
co-ordination. That would highlight the role of the Economic and Social Council as
co-ordinator of all United Nations socio-economic activity in harmonizing the
efforts of all bodies and organizations in the United Nations system. It would be
important to propose action, based on the Economic and Social Council resolution
entitled liThe role of the United Nations in the ~arly identification, analysis and
monitoring of world economic development to utilize such mechanisms for the early
detection of problems in the world economy with a view to taking the concerted
measures necessary to ward off their possible adverse consequences.

11. External debt, which had reached astrOl )lIlical proportions, was the most acute
expression of the international crisis. A solution to tho external debt problem
must be discussed in multilateral forums, inclUding ~onsultntions between debtor
Rnd creditor countries sponsored by the United Nations.

12. The deteriorating State of the environment was one of the major international
problems along with the prevention of nuclear war, disarmament and the settlement
of regional conflicts and the international crisis. Environmental pollution knew
neither national boundaries nor ideological barriers and affected the vi.tal
interests of everyone. The Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic, which had suffered
the consequences of the Chernobyl tragedy, agreed that the United Nations should
develop the concept of international ecological security, whose final objectivB
must be the establishment of a new type of collaboration among States. Such
collaboration should reduce the negative impact of ecological problems to a minimllrn
and exert a positive influence in other spheres of international life.

13. Preparations for the upcoming United Nations conference on environment and
development, to be convened in 1992, opelled a broad field of action in that area.
His d~legation supported the idea of establishing, within the framework of the
United Nations, a centre for emergency environmental assistance. That initiative
could be carried out o~ the basis of the possibilities that were offered by United
Nations organizations, through the strengthening of their co-ordination and th~

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C. 2144/SR. 5
English
Page 5

exchange of information and with the commitment of Member States to assist one
another in the event of an environmental disaster.

14. The drafting of the international development str~tegy for the fourth United
Nations development decade would require a substantial contribution from the
Economic and Social Council, the United Nations Conference on Trade and Development
(UNCTAD), the United Nations Industrial Development Organization (UNIDO) and o~her

specialized bodies and agencies of the United Nations. The basic objection of the
preparatory work should be to ensure that the new strategy fully reflected the
realities of the modern multifaceted and interdependent world.

15. The international community should recognize the right of each country freely
to choose its own path to social and economic development under the present
circumstances, when there were new approaches for achieving social development and
a closer link between economic and social factors. The Ukrainian SSR did not
object to linking the work of the Preparatory Committee of the Whole for the
Special Session of the General Assembly Devoted t~ International Economic
Co-operation to that of the ~H~ Committee ~f the Whole for the Prp.paration of
the International Development Strategy, as provided for in General Assembly
decision 43/460. A joint statement by the socialist countries on that matter was
contained in document E/1989/127.

16. Mr. DJOupI (Algeria) said that while hopes for peace were increasing kindled
by the reduction of tension in conflict areas and to the cooling down of
ideological and military rivalries, poverty continued to grow worse. Promising
signs seemed to be emerging among the major Powers, foreshadowing a step from
detente to understanding. However, for the vast majority of mankind, hunger and
famine continued to spread and underdevelopment to worsen. The East-West exchange
of views should be accompanied by a North-South dialogue so as to correct the
serIous imbalances in the world economy, which resulted in the division of mankind
into two contradictory extremes. Int~rnational economic relations still meant the
well-being for a small minority and poverty for the overwhelmi.ng majority. Mankind
could not be united until the division between North and South disappeared and
until all people of the world, without exception, were able to enjoy the benef;ts
of economic progress.

17. The division of mankind between North and South was not immutable and the
degradation of tr.e human environment, destruction of genetic species,
impoverishment of the ecosystems and pOllution of the environment did not have to
continue. In order to ensure a common, bright future for all, it was necessary to
revitalize the sustained economic growth of the poorest countries and to put an end
once and for all to the longest continuous economic depression that those countries
had experienced since independence, without curbing the longe&t uninterrupted
growth of modern times in the richest countries.

18. In order to achieve that objective, it was necessary urgently to solve the
external debt crisis by reducing debt service payments and by re-establishing
positive North-South financial flo~s. Moreover, the structural adjustment of the

I • .•

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.2144/SR.5
English
Page 6

(~ ojoudi, Algeria)

poorest countries must be complemented and mitigated by adjusting the economic
situation to universal growth requirements. Furthermore, the increasing awareness
of the ever increasing need to protect the environment could not be an additional
obstacle to development. On the contrary, it should be a concrete expression of
the interdependence among countries, so that such interdependence ceased to be
asymmetdcal,.

19. The United Nations had managed to alleviate fears of a world war, by
contributing to East-West rapprochement. The Organization must now turn, without
further delay, to the task of eliminating the scourge of absolute poverty, and
contributing to North-South rapprochement. The convening in April 1990 of a
special session of the General Assembly devoted to international economic
co-operation and, in particular, to revitalization of the economic growth and
development of the developing countries and the preparation of a new international
development strategy for the fourth United Na~ions development decade provided the
framework and the means for achieving that objective. For its part, the Movement
of Non-Aligned Countries at its ninth Summit Conference held at Belgrade,
Yugoslavia, and the Group of 77, at its special session held at Caracas, Venezuela,
had assumed their responsibility regarding that u~dertaking.

20. Mr. SCHLEGEL (German Democratic Republic) said that what currently mattered
was to point out effective ways to solve the international community's complicated
enviromnental problems and to correct the persisting imbalances in the world
economy. In that regard, as a forum of universal dialogue and multilateral
co-operation, the United Nations was irreplaceable.

21. To date, commendable progress in international security and tbd settlement of
regional conflicts had not resulted in more equitable international economic
relations. On tho contrary, underdevelopment, poverty, indebtedness, disease, drug
abuse and the destruction of the environment had become serious global problems.

22. His delegation agreed that ignoring urgent economic requirements could
undermine the efforts for peace and stability in the world, as the non-aligned
countries had stated at Belgrade. Therefore measures in favour of growth and
development had become, now more than ever, part and parcel of the struggle for
international peace and security. Each State must have a share in the world
economy on an equal footing and must respect the sovereignty and realities of other
States.

23. The aim of multilateral co-operation in the 19905 must be to seek mutually
acceptable and generally beneficial solutions to the most cruci~l international
economic problems. At the fortieth session of the General Assembly, the socialist
countries had proposed the concept of in~ernational economic security. The report
of the Secretary-General on international economic security (A/44/217) was an
important document and a useful contribution to the discussion on that propo~al.

However, it was not sufficient simply to describe existing activities. Practical
measures were required of the United Nations, its organs and organizations in order
to expand and shape the various elements of international economic security. A
case in point was the early identification, analysis and assessment as well as the

I • ••

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.2/44/SR.5
English
Page 7

(Mr. Schlegel, German
Democratic Republic)

monitoring of world economic developments, that had been initiated in the World
Economic Survey. 1989 (E/1989/45). His delegation hoped that that valuable work
would continue in accordance with the relevant resolution that had been adopted by
consensus at the most recent session of the Economic and Social Council, so as to
establish a mechanism within the United Nations for identifying and settling
economic conflicts.

24. The special session of the General Assembly devoted to international economic
co-operation and the preparation of the new international development strategy
raised great expectations and the approach of the German Democratic Republic in
that regard was constructive. In the 1990s new and tangible impulses were needed
to attain the economic growth and development of all countries, in particular, the
developing countries. The improvement of international economic relations called
for a common solution to the problems of an increasingly international economy. In
that regard, it was necessary to support United Nations resolutions and
international conferences, as many of them (such as the resolutions of UNCTAD VII
and the Charter of Economic Rights and Duties of States) had lost nothing of their
topicality. Implem~ntation of the recommendations contained in that Charter would
help to improve international economic relations. The German Defnocratic Republic
and other socialist States had reaffirmed their approval of that document ~n a
joint statement (A/44/379).

25. It was to be hoped that the special session and the new international
development strategy would help bring about stable and sustained growth of the
world economy and that particular attention would be given to the needs of the
developing countries. General Assembly decision 43/460 was an appropriate basis
for addressing that issue at the special session. His delegation was in favour of
accelerating the preparatory work, as there was an urgent need to reach agreement
on the agenda, the major substantive items and the character of the final
document. To that end, appropriate negotiations should be held without delay
during the current session.

26. The Ad Hoc Committee of the Whole for the Preparation of the International
Development Strategy for the Fourth United Nations Development Decade had done
intensive work and his delegation was pleased to observe a growing convergence of
views on the general structure and main elements of the strategy. That increasing
agreement could be attributed to the prospect that a new strategy would promote the
growth and development of developing countries in partiCUlar, take due account of
the new challenges facing international economic co-operation in the 1990s, focus
on issues such as trade, external indebtedness, technology, human resources,
poverty, underdevelopment and the environment and contain concrete stipul~tions on
United Nati, 1S participation in the implementation of the strategy.

27. Protection of the environment had become a global concern on which the future
of mankind depended. All State3, irrespective of their socio-economic system or
degree of development, were affected by the global environmental problem. His
delegation welcomed the proposal to hold a United Nations conference on environment

/ ...

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.2144/SR.5
English
Page 8

(Mr. SChle;el, German
Q§mQcratic Republic)

and develQpment in 1992 at a high pQlitical level, and suppQrted the Qffer by
Brazil tQ hQst that cQnference. It hQped that the cQnference WQuld identify the
relevant tasks up tQ the ye~r 2000 and beyQnd. The applicatiQn Qf the cQncept Qf
disarmament fQr develQpment was alsQ Qf great relevance tQ the envirQnment.

28. His delegatiQn shared the assessment made at the Belgrade summit that external
debt put unbearable strains Qn the develQping cQuntries and invQlved cQnsiderable
ris~3 fQr internatiQnal eCQnQmic relatiQn~ as a wh,le. It was in the interests Qf
eCQnQmic grQwth in the develQping cQuntries and the stability Qf the wQrld eCQnQmy
tQ find effective and lasting sQlutiQns that tQQk accQunt Qf the legitimate
interests Qf all parties cQncernec. The United NatiQns CQuld make a CQntributiQn
tQwards that end by helping tQ r.reate favQurftble internatiQnal cQnditiQns and to
develQp the pQlitical will to arrrive at a cQmprehensive and just settlement.

29. There was nQ dQubt a relationship between settling tho debt prQblem and
imprQving internatiQnal trade relatiQns. Reduced protectionism, stable commodity
prices and fair terms Qf trade WQuld visibly alleviate the situation of the
developing cQuntries. The SecQnd United Nablons CQnference Qn the Least DevelQped
CQuntries, tQ be held at Paris in 1990, was Qf-great significance, in view Qf the
need for steps tQ help relieve the seriQus econQmic and social situatiQn Qf those
cQuntries.

30. His delegatiQn viewed UNCTAD, which was celebrating its twenty-fifth
anniversary in 1989, as a representative multilateral forum with the pQtential for
a business-like dialQgue and result-oriented negQtiations, as was testified to by
the prQgress made at UNCTAD VII towards sQlving urgent global eCQnomic problems.

31. Issues of great importance ~~ere being discussed at the current Uruguay Round
of GATT, but participants would be able tQ contribute tQ making international trade
relations more stable only if they gave balanced consideration tQ the interests of
all partners.

32. More than ever, scientific and technQlogical relations needed to be shaped
withQut discrimination. Discriminatory embargo lists, SQme dating back 40 years,
continued to be an Qbstacl~ to normal trade and healthy business relations,
however. In the long run, they went against the very interests of those who
imposed them. His delegation shared the view expressed at the tenth session of the
Intergovernmental Committee on Science and Technology for Development that, in
accordance with the Programme Qf Action on Science and Technology for Development,
special importance should be attached tQ increasing the developing countries'
scientific and technological pQtential.

33. The United NatiQns regional economic commissions assumed growing significance
in the development of mutually beneficial cO-Qperation in the areas of the economy,
science and technology. The States members of the Economic Commission for Europe
(ECE) had made gOQd progress in that directiQn, although many Qbstacles remained to
be overcome. His delegation shared the view that ECE activities were in line with

I • ••

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



AlC. V44/SR. 5
English
Page 9

(MJ:·_L_.5.~Ql..~g_fl.L __~.r.m~n
DeJllQ<;:_rp Uc. J~ep_~'p1J <;: )

the socialist States' initiatives to ensure lasting stability and security in
Europe and to bring about relations based on partnership and good-neighbourliness
and well-ordered economic co-operation hetween East and West.

34. Given the need to overcome the current underdevelopment of developing
countries, the development and use of human resources for economic and social
progress were taking on a new dimension. Economic and Social Coun~il resolution
1989/120, which had been initiated by the German ~emocratic Republic and adopted by
consensus, contained proposals designed to enhance both the effectiveness of
multilate~al co-operation and co-ordination of the manifold activities undertaken
by the United Nations system in that field. Human resources development was also
an important objective of the material support which his country gave to developing
countries. Such aid had equalled 0.64 per cent of the country's gross national
product in 1988 and had been granted despite the consequences for his country's own
npvelopment of the aggravation of the world economic situation.

35. In the four decades that had passed since its founding, the German Democratic
RepUblic had steadily increased its economic weight. The efficiency of its
national economy was a solid basis that allowed for raising standards of living and
ensuring social and material security, full employment, a high degree of education
and free health care. In the future, too, the country would meet new challenges
and react with flexibility to new conditions.

36. MLL.._.ZIARlJ..N (Islamic Republic of Iran) said that since the early 1980s, the
international economic situation had been unfavourable to the developing
countries. Commodity prices had remained low, the gap between rich and poor
countries was widening, no solution had been found to the debt problem and the flow
of resources to developing countries continued to decline. As a result, the gross
domestic product (GDP) of those countries was not keeping pace with population
growth and real per capita income remained below 1980 levels.

37. The steady reduction in prices for commodities and raw ~aterials, especially
oil, since 1982 had caused a serious deterioration in terms of trade and impeded
the development of developing countries. Since commodities and raw materials were
the sola source of income for those countries, their prices should be boosted and
stabilized to ensure a revitalization of economic growth. In that context, his
delegation welcomed the fact that the Common Fund had come into operation. His
delegation also urged the roll-back of protectionist barriers against neveloping
countries' exports. The Uruguay Round of trade negotiations must receive due
attention, in order to strengthen the international trading system in a way that
met the neens of developing count~ies.

38. The problem of external innebtedness han not been resolved, notwithstanding
the efforts made to that end. The ratio of external indebtedness to GNP and export
earnings had been extremely unfavourable to the developing countries in recent
years. In addition, during the past seven years the financial resources received
by developing countries had diminished by 50 per cent. Consequently the reverse

I ••

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.2/44/SR.5
English
Page 10

(Mr. Ziaran, Islamic Republic of Iran)

transfer of resources from developing to developed countries had been intensified.
Austerity measures adopted by the developing countries had failed to stimulate
domestic investment and development and, on the contrary, had restricted the social
budget: that, in turn, had adversely affected the poorest strata in the developing
countries. During the previous year there had been political riots in some
indebted countries, thus demonstrating the gravity of the situation. His
delegation reiterated that the only way out of the external indebtedness crisis was
a substantial reduction in external indebtedness in terms of both principal and
interest. accompanied by new flows of financial resources to developing countries.

39. In 1988 the Second Committee had shown its readiness to undertake its
responsibility as an international forum to seek solutions for global economic
problems. The adoption by consensus of a resolution on t~le Ad Hoc Committee of the
Whole for the Preparation of the International Development Strategy for the Fourth
United Nations Development Decade and on the Preparatory Committee of the Whole for
the Special Session of the General Assembly Devoted to International Economic
Co-operation was evidence that it could succeed. At the latest session of the
Ad Hoc CJmmittee, the Group of 77 had introduced an initiative designed to
facilitate preparation of the strategy. That proposal had been welcomed by other
groups of countries but unfortunately had not been approved. Important elements to
be included in preparing for the strategy were: trade, the external debt crisis,
the eradication of hunger and poverty, science and technology for development, the
development of human resources and agriculture. The strategy by itself could not
solve the problems of international development: it would be impossible for it to
achieve its objective without a strong political will.

40. The North-South dialogue had not produced results. Bearing in mind the
increasing interdependence of the world economy, the stagnation of growth in
developing countries and changes in the world economic situation, it was essential
to adopt common measures with a view to strengthening the capacity of the
developing countries to meet new challenges. The Islamic Republic of Iran
supported the convening of the special session of the General Assembly devoted to
international economic co-operation and, in particular, to the revitalization of
economic growth and development of the developing countries: such an initiative
could provide new impetus for the negotiations intended to seek ways and means to
address the problem of the economic stagnation of the developing countries and to
introduce a just economic order as the basis for lasting peace, security and
prosperity.

41. Mr. Payton (New Zealand> took the Chair.

42. Mr. DING Yuanhong (China) said that the world economic situation remained
serious. While t~e developed countries had enjoyed seven consecutive years of
economic growth and international trade had expanded substantially, a number of
factors making for instability and imbalances continued to exist. Inflation was
rising and economic growth was slowing in a number of countries. Trade friction
and financial disorder persisted. The economic situation in the developing
~ountries was very serious. Notwithstanding the rigorous adjustment measures

I . ..

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.2144/SR.5
English
Page 11

(Mr. Din9 Yuanhon9, China)

adopted in many of those countries, the great majority continued to experience nil
or negative growth rates. The external economic environment continued to
deteriorate: the debt burden was increasing concurrently with the reverse flow of
financial resources; the rate of investment had dropped; protectionist barriers had
been consolidated and terms of trade had worsened. T.hat situation was particularly
evident in Latin America and Africa but, even in the Asian region, where there had
been relatively strong growth, poverty and underdevelopment continued to be very
serious. If the gap between rich and poor countries was not closed, world peace
and stability would be endangered. The developing countries represented the great
majority of the world. There could be no global prosperity without their
prosperity.

43. His delegation hoped that the international community would give careful
consideration to the proposals made by the special ministerial meeting of the
Group of 77 in Caracas, and by the Summit Conference of the Non-Aligned Countries
in Belgrade. While it was the responsibility of the developing countries
themselves to make every effort to eliminate poverty and stimulate economic
recovery, they could not succeed without the support of the international
community. Such support could take two forms: in the short and medium term,
revitalization of the North-South dialogue was imperative and, in the longer term,
the mechanisms for international economic co-operation and the management of the
world economic system must be strengthened. International economic relations must
undergo radical transformation. In particular, there must be changes in the system
which made it possible for a small group of developed countries to impose their
decisions on economic issues on the rest of the international community. The needs
of the developed countries were undoubtedly important but those of the developing
countries were equally so. The principles of mutual respect and equity should
guide international economic relations,

44. His delegation supported the special session of the General Assembly devoted
to international economic co-operation, which would be the forum for the first
North-South dialogue of the 1990s; he hoped that the Governments of the various
countries would participate actively in the preparatory process with fresh ideas
and approaches. His delegation also hoped that the session would enjoy universal
and high-level participation and that it would be able to arrive at new guidelines
for international economic co-operation. The Second Committee should try during
the current session to reach agreement as early as possible on the provisional
agenda of the special session.

45. His Government attached great importance to the formulation of the
international development strategy and hoped that it would contribute to the
revitalization of the economies of the developing countries during the next
decade. At the second session of the Ad Hoc Committee of the Whole for the
Preparation of the International Development Strategy for the Decade, some groups
and countries, including China, had put forward many good proposals on the
structure of the strategy. Although the session failed to reach consensus on the
broader outline of the strategy, the preparatory work had made progress. His
delegation was ready to participate actively in the preparation and formulation of
the strategy with a practical and flexible approach.

I • •.

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.2144/SR.5
Enqlish
Page 12

46. External indebtedness was one of the most serious problems facing the
developing countries. His delegation supported the efforts for drasticnlly
reducing the debt in terms of both principal and interest and urged a flow of new
money to the developing debtor nations. In that connection, he welcomod the recent
initiatives designed to lighten the debt burden of some countries. Neverthelesft,
not only should the debt of middle-income, heavily-indebted countries be reduced,
but that of the low-income debtor countries and other developing debtor countries
should also be given relief. The measures adopted to solve the debt problem should
be focused on helping the debtor countries to regain econ')mic growth so that they
would possess the capacity to repay the debt. To that end account must be taken of
factors such as commodities, trade and financial resources.

47. Protection of the environment was crucial to the survival and development of
humanity. Since the developed countries were chiefly responsible for the polluted
environme~~ in the present-day world, they should also bear responsibility for
protectin'J the environment and addressing the problem of pollution. Environment
protection should not become an additional cOlidltionality in providing credit to
the developing cnuntriesl rather, they must be provided with the necessary
technology and capital to enable them to solve their environmental Qroblems on
their own. His Govornment supported the convening of a United Nations conference
on environment and development in Brazil in 1992.

48. Lastly, with regard to the comprehensive policy review of operational
activities for development of the United Nations system, his delegation considered
that the operational activities of the United Natlons system had provided
considerable technical assistance to the developing countries over the past few
years, which had played a positive role in their economic reconstruction and soalal
dpvelopment. At the same time, it was mindful that much remainGd to be done in
meeting the changing needs of the developing countries. Many organizations and
agencies were reviewin~ the work they had done in the 1980D and stUdying ways of
coping with the challenges of the 19908. In his delegation's view, the operational
activities of the United Nations system should continue to take the 1970 consensus
and r.he 1.975 new <Bmensions programme of technical co-operation as the source for
their guiding principles. They should continue to respect tho sovereignty of the
recipient countries, to provide effective assistance to the developinq countries in
line with their respectivo development programmes and priorities, and to promote
technical co-operation between developing countries, thereby enhancing thAir
capacity for self-reliance.

49. Mr. PEJIC (Yugoslavia) si'lid that tho introductory stat.ements by the
Director-General for Development and latern~tionill Economic Co-operation and hy thcl
Under-Secretary-General for International Economic and Social AffaIrs accentuatod,
with their realistic approach, the priority that the international community
attached to world economic problems. His delegation associated itself with the
comprehensive statement delivered on behalf of the Group of 77 by the Ambassador of
Malaysia.

I • •.

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



,

Ale. 2144/SR. 5
English
Page 13

50. At the current session of the General Assembly, the international community
would have an opportunity to confront some of the most pressing problems
jeopardizing the positive developments in international political relations and
peace and security in the world. On the threshold of the twenty-first century, t~e

international community had a responsibility to present and futura generations tu
halt an~ . 1verse the widening of the gap between rich and poor and the exacerbation
of Lh· -~onomic problems of developing countries, so glaringly evident in growing
hun~el ..hn poverty. If left unchecked and unattended, those problems would
inevit~)l. lead to the destabilization of international relations.

51. The dramatic deterioration in the position of the developing countries
deserved maximum attention. In that context, the drastic fall in standards of
living in the vast majority of developing countries, especially the least developed
and most highly indebted ones, waij, and must be, of particular concern. The
situation would not change soon unless appropriate meaaures were taken to begin to
resolve the problems standing in the way of the economic recovery and development
of developing countries. Dialogue and negotiations between the developed and
developing countries were therefore an imperative. At the Ninth Summit Conference
of Non-Aligned Countries, recently concluded in Belgrade, the highest priority had
been assigned to international economic issuos. It had been stressod at the
Conference that the deteriorating position of developing countries in the world
economy represented the single most serious i.mpediment to the consolidation and
continuation of the current positive trends in international relations. There had
been a general consens~s that, unless the pressing development problems facing the
developing countries were solved, it would not be possible to ensure lasting peace
and security in the world. That opinion prevailed not only among the non-aligned
and other developing countries but also in ever broader circles that recognized the
urgent need to confront the problems and commence dialogue.

52. Inter-national solidarity must be directed towards ensuring economic growth and
development oC all countries, thus facilitating the integration of the developing
countries into the mainstream of the world economy in the context of ever
increasing interdependence. The special session of the General Assembly devoted to
int6rnational economic co-operation, in particular to the revitalization of
uconomic growth and development in the developing countries, represented one of the
most important opportunities to embark upon the diulogue that the non-aligned and
other developing countries had c~ll8d for in Caracas and Belgrade. The special
sossion must be properly prepared, with the participation of all countries, if it
was to succoed. The qeneral conditions prevuiling, in particular the relatively
stable growth of the developed countries and the current political climate, ware
couducive to such success.

53. Alongside the preparations for the special session, work should be done on the
elaboration of the international development strategy for the fourth United Nations
development decade. which should provide a framework for accelerated economic
gro~~h and development, first and foremost in the developing countries. The
strategy shou~J help remove the obstacles that stood in the way of a balance~

development of the world economy, and offer possible long-term solutions to major

I • ••

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.2144/SR.5
English
Page 14

(Mt, P.iiC.~yq~alD~~A)

development problems, thus paving the way for the eradication of poverty.
addition, the strategy should deal with certain issues which were bound to
influence the course of world economic development in the next decade, in
particular the environment and human resource development.

In

' ..

54. The external debt of the developing countries constituted the greatest
obstacle to their economic development and social progress. There were now net
flows of funds from the developing to the developed countries, a state of affairs
that was morally unacceptable. The developed countries had also gradually begun to
recognize the economic and political importance of the external debt, and
particularly its serious implications for develo~ment and the stability of the
world economy. It was thus no surprise that there had been some evolution in the
approach to solving the problem. Nevertheless, not enough had yet been done. The
debt crisis called for more courageous, broader application of all the initiatives
and for their extension to all indebted developing cuuntries. His delegation
welcomed all the initiatives and proposals a~ising from the concept of debt and
debt-servicing reduction, with a view to bringing them into line with the actual
payment capacity of debtor countries and their development needs. But at the same
time there was a need to ensure flows of new financial resources, without which it
would not be possible to ensure revival of economic growth in the developing
countries. A firm commitment by the Governments of developed countries to that
process was of vital importance.

55. Notwithstanding the role of international financial institutions in that
regard, it was important to strengthen and promote the specific role of the United
Nations, as a forum in which the problem of debt could be considered in the
broadest possible context of development. At the recent Summit Conference of the
Non-Aligned Movement, it had been proposed that an appropriate forum under the
auspices of the United Nations should be convened, with the participation of
interr.ational financial institutions and banks, to review all aspe~ts of the
problem of external debt within the context of an improved environment for
development.

~6. On the other hand, it was evident that a lasting solution to the global
problem of the external indebtedness of developing countries could not be found if
other economic problems were not adequately addressed at the same time. The system
of international trade was still subject to growing protectionism, unilateralism,
pruliferation of non-tnriff barriers and non-compliance with commitments to
maintain tho status quo and reverse protectionist measures assumed at
Punta del Este. That sltuation underscored the importance of the negotiations at
the Uruguay Round, which should contribut~ to the liberalization and expansion of
internati0nal trade. The decline and general instability of prices for basic
commodities had delayed the development of many developing countries, especially in
Africa, for almost a decade. Concerted action was necessary to solve that
problem. The Common Fund for Commodities could achieve the desired results if its
effective functioning was ensured.

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C. 2/44/SR. S
English
Page 15

57. The degradation of the environment, which threatened the very survival of
hl~anity, was rapidly becoming one of the priorities of multilateral co-operation.
The continuing deterioration of the qlobal 9nvironment and its negative
consequences for all countries obliged the international community to address
various related problems with the utmost urgency. Those questions could not be
considered outside the context of growth and accelerated development for developing
countries. In giving priority to the environment, the Ninth Summit Conference had
emphasized the need for additional financial resources and the transfer of
environmentally safe technology which could strengthen the capability of developing
countries to address those problems effectively. At the current session of the
General Assembly, a decision should be adopted calling for a United Nations
conference on the environment and development i~ 1992. The delegation of
Yugoslavia fully supported the offer by Brazil to host such a conference. The
necessary preparations should fully reflect the interests of all countries,
especially the development needs of developing countries.

58. Other items on the agenda of the Second Committee deserved thorough
consideration, in partiCUlar, science and technology for development, economic and
technical co-operation among developing countries, preparation of a conference on
the least developed countries and operational activities for development. His
delegation was convinced that the spirit of constructive co-operation manifested in
international relations would also prevail in the Committee. One way in which the
United Nations could safeguard world peace and security was to apply its enormous
prestige and political weight in support of the efforts to find solutions to
international economic problems.

59. ML.-..PA~.t& (Uruguay) said that the general debate in the Committee was, for
the most part, redundant, because the comments made in the Economic and Social
Council and other forums were inevitably repeated and the positions of the various
countries concerning international economic co-operation were being expressed
simultaneously in the General Assembly. Nevertheless, he emphasized the need to
strengthen the role of the United Nations, and especially that of the Second
Committee, in international economic co-operation. His delegation was firmly
convinced that the United Nations could again play a leading role in that
co-operation only if the international community reached a new consensus reflecting
and recognizing the important changes that had occurred in the international
economic system in the past decade, in both the North and South, profoundly
affecting the relations between them. The pJans of cction and the strategies
formulated in the past two decades had failed not only because of a lack of
political will, but also because they did not reflect reality.

60. As for the lack of political will, there was a noticeable disinclination to
co-operate in development-related matters with developing countries in one sector
of the international community. Biased approaches to topics reflecting special
interests were beginning to predominate. Economic co-operation was thus becoming a
process of permanent negotiation on the aspects to be addressed. His delegation
believed that those aspects would be the ones that most seriously threatened the
survival of developing countries. That did not mean that certain topics could not

I • ••

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



AlC.2144/SR.5
English
Page 16

(Mr. Paolillo. Uruguay)

be the subject of negotiation in the United Nations, but it was imposible
arbitrarily to specify the range of economic co-operation in terms of the interests
of one group of countries.

61. As for the failure to face reality, it would be difficult to continue making
progress without taking into account the new elements which had begun to influence
international economic co-operation in recent years. Decisive changes had occurred
in three areas. The first was the development of new international relationships
in trade and finance. The changes in the global economy since the beginning of the
1970s had, in fact, altered the system established in the Bretton Woods
agreements. Thus, the 1980s were ending with high trade and financial imbalances
and a new relationship among the various countries and blocs of countries in trade
and finance. The United States had a trade deficit and had become a net importer
of capital. Other developed countries such as Japan and the Federal Republic of
Germany and, on the other hand, the countries of Latin America and the Caribbean
had surpluses and had become net exporters of capital, without any apparent trend
to re-establish the balance.

62. Currently, the fundamental question was whether the global economy could grow
on the basis of greater openness in international trade encompassing a growing
number of developing countries and socialist economies or if, on the contrary, a
system dominated by a few powerful economies and based on protectionism and
internal production subsidies would prevail. Another aspect of the same problem
was the change in the composition and direction of trade caused by technological
advances. The basic commodities component in ~he cost of a final product had
declined noticeably in recent years, while the service component had increased.
That phenomenon had transformed the traditional concepts of international trade and
was probably behind the difficult negotiations in Geneva held over the past three
years to establish a system reflecting those changes in a just and balanced form
and including special treatment for developing countries. The financial flows
between developed and developing countries had a:so changed significantly. The
decade of the 1980s had been characterized by a lew phenomenon: the net transfer
of resources from developing countries to developed countries. In the World
Economic Survey, published each year by the Secretariat, it was noted that in 1988
that outward movement of resources had increased to more than $30 billion.

63. It was relevant to mention three other elements closely linked to those
changes which, in spite of national or regional factors, influenced the system of
trade and financial relations of the developing countries as a whole: the fiscal
and trade deficit of the United States and its repercussions on that country's rate
of economic growth and on the maintenance of a free-trade system; the new role
Japan was beginning to play in the international economic system; and the reforms
and economic integration taking place among the States members of the European
Economic Community. The changes taking place in the Soviet Union and in some
eastern European countries should also be taken into account, as they would have
considerable repercussions on international economic co-operation as well. The
possibility of increased trade between the countries of the East and West would

/ ...

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.2/44/SR.5
English
Page 17

(M~Paolillo, Uruguay)

have profound effects in the next decade on the world economy in general and on the
economies of developing countries in particular.

64. A second area of change was that of the social factors bound up closely with
development processes. Since the 1970s, Governments no longer had concerned
themselves solely with economic growth and capital accumulation but had placed
increasing emphasis on planning for the development of human resources, income
distribution, meeting basic need~ and eliminati~~ extreme poverty. In that
context, the question arose whether structural adjustment was a fitting instrument
to remedy poverty. The limitations of such an approach were becoming ever-clearer
and it was increasingly apparent that the distribution of government expenditure
did not suffice ln solving medium- and long-term poverty difficulties. That
problem requ1red a more comprehensive approach. The links between poverty, human
resources and science and technology were stated in considerable detail in the
Cartagena, Jakarta and Khartoum declarations.

65. A third area of change affecting development processes was that of
technological advances, particularly with respect to micro-el~ctronics,

informatics, biotechnology and now materials. Such advances were reflected in the
production systems, commerce aud employment, and they represented a serious
challenge for the deve:oping countries, as they impeded the development of their
Jrimary S4ctors and curtailed their exports of manuf~ctures, thereby undermining
competitiveness in the market-place and job generation. The developing countries
must find effective ways of harnessing technological progress in order to prevent
the development gap between the North and the South from growing wi~er.

66. In the context of those trends and changes, two items would form the nucleus
of the Committee's deliberations and negotiations at the curront se~sionl external
indebtedness and the environment. His delegation would deal wlth those issues when
they were taken up by the Committee and hoped that it would currently be possible
to arrive at a consensus. The changes to which he had referred should be discussed
in depth both at the special session of the General Assembly in April 1990 and in
connection with the international development strategy, whose common objective was
to revitalize development in the developing countries and to strengthen the role of
the United Nations in international co-operation. That would also entail a
reappraisal of the United Nations role io economic a~d social matters and a
redefinition of the responsibilities of the leaders of the international system.

67. Recent progress in political matters demonst.rated that the will to co-operate
led to maximum effic\ency of multilateral machinerYJ tbe experience could be
repeated in the economic and social areas if the necessary political will existed.
That, together with an awareness of economic realities, could give substance and
me~ning to international co-operation for development in the United Nations system.

68. Ms. HAMOPI (Iraq) said that, although there was an improvement in the
political situation, in economic matters a greater effort was required to alleviate
the poverty, hunger and other hardships endured by many countries and peoples. Her
country found disturbing the enormous gap between the developing and the developed
economies.

I • ••

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C. VU/SR. 5
English
Page 18

(Ms. HamQdi, Iraq)

60. Scientific and technQIQgical prQgress in the develQped cQuntries and wQrsening
eCQnQmic crises in the develQping cQuntl·i6~ had led to inequitable and unjust
internatiQnal eCQnQmic relations. The develQping cQuntries were trying tQ keep up
their external debt and interest payments, which tQQk a large share Qf the grQss
natiQnal prQduct. That prevented them frQm pursuing develQpment effQrts aimed at
achieving a reasQnable standard Qf living fQr their peQples. It was impQrtant to
increase aid tQ thQse cQuntries for the restructuring Qf their eCQnQmies and the
diversificatiQn Qf their expQrts, which would ansure that there were sufficient
reSQurces fQr econQmic and social dovelQpment. That was why such weight was
attached to the impQrtant deliberations which would be held during the special
sessiQn Qf the General Assembly in 1990.

70. Her cQuntry was convinced that economic co-operation among the developing
countries was a sound and constructive approach. Accordingly, at the regiQnal
level, the Arab States had begun tQ unite their effQrts within regiQnal eCQnomic
grQupings in order tQ create the cQllective capacity fQr self-reliance. A gOQd
example had been the establishment of the Arab CQ-Qperation Council by Egypt, Iraq,
Jordan and Yemen.

71. Mankind as a whole was perturbed by eCQlogical degradatiQn. Iraq considered
that the preservation of the environment was one of the prerequisites fQr economic
and social development and stressed that concern Qn the part Qf all was necessary
in order to avert a devastating ecological disaster. The development priQrities of
develQping cQuntries must be taken intQ account and their sQvereignty over their
natural resources, which had been consistently pillaged, must be respected.

72. MrL_MQQSA (Oman) said that the Committee had SQme very important issues before
it, including the item relating to the econQmic difficulties of develQping
countries, which arose from protectionism, the external debt, reduced prices for
basic cQmmQdities and unstable rates of exchange. As a result, the gross national
product of the poorest countries had decreased.

73. At the current session of the General Assembly dialogue and negotiations were
predominant, and that was a welcome development. At the same time, there was
stagnation in economic matters and the dialogue between the north and the south had
not got under way. There was a need for negotiations to find ways of solving
problems through co-operation among all countries. Economic difficulties were not
easy to overcome. Accordingly, all countries should assume their responsibilities
and go to the aid of the developing countries. The financial institutions, whether
multilateral or private, must come up with solutions tQ the debt problems of all
countries without exception. Protectionism must be eliminated.

74. The Minister for Foreign Affairs of Oman, speaking at the current session of
the General Assembly, had ~eferred to the proposal concerning economic matters made
by Kuwait at the forty-third session, a proposal cQuched in precise terms which
merited the necessary supPQrt and to be translated intQ practice.

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



Ale. 2144/SR. 5
English
Page 19

(Mr. MOQso, Oman)

75. Negotiations were a sound way ot finding solutions to problems. The Minister
{or Foreign Affairs of Oman had expressed his support for a special session of the
General Assembly devoted to international economic co-operation, with a view to
reversing the current trend towards economic deterioration. The current gap
between the minority of "have's" and the majority of "have not"s" must be
e Hmi nated.

76. The environment should be a source of concern for all of mankind. Steps must
be taken to avert threats to health without hampering development. The world today
was more unified than ever and, as a result, pollution knew no frontlers. Oman had
established a Council for environmental protection and ecology and a Ministry
responsible for environmental questions. The conference on the relationship
between developmont and the environment in 1992 would help to solve such problems.

78. M.r.L..A~::EH..U~.x (Yemen), speaking also on behalf of Democratic Yemen, said that
the current session was being held at a time of extremely complex economic
conditions, including declining economic development levels, growing foreign
exchange deficits and a widening gap between the developed and the developing
countries. It was therefore a matter of urgen~y to establish a new international
economic order based on justice and equity. It was inadmissible that the
developing countries should continue to be net exporters of raw materials and net
importers of manufactured products and that they should therefore continue to show
a deficit and be unable to meet the basic needs of their peoples. The least
developed countries, because of their scant resources, were those which suffered
most. Yemen, which was such a country, had been seriously affected not only by the
economic crisis but also by two types of natural disaster I earthquakes and
floods. Those disasters had caused grave loss of life and property, and the
Government of Yemen had adopted reconstruction measures and taken steps to assist
the population.

79. Among the world's most serious economic problems were those related to
external debt. In spite of all the efforts that had been made by the developing
countries to find solutions to their immediate problems, development remained a
distant goal. Co-operation between creditor countries and debtor countries must be
encouraged. To that end, the United Nations should redouble its efforts to promote
solutions that were acceptable to all.

80. The 19808 had been a minus. The international community and, above all, the
developed countries should spare no effort to solve the world's economic problems
in order to dispel that gloom. All possible support should be given to ensure the
success of the special session of the General Assembly devoted to international
economic co-operation. That session would be an opportune time to revitalize the
North-South dialogue and to establish mechanisms making it possible to provide
genuine solutions to the world's problems and tn define the international
development strategy for the fourth United Nations development decade.

I • ••

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



AlC. 2144/SR. 5
English
Page 20

(Mr. Al-Eryany, Yemen)

81. Lastly, the international community should bear the environmental problems in
mind. Environmental protection measures must be odopted. His delegation supported
the convening in 1992 of a United Nations conference on environment and development.

82. Mr. SOTIROV (Bulgaria) said that, in the days following the opening of the
forty-fourth session of the General Assembly, numerous heads of State and ministers
for foreign affairs had referred to the problems of economic development and
international economic co-operation. While it was too early to draw conclusions,
considerable emphasis had been placed on the growing interdependence of the world
and on the need for the international community to join efforts in the search for
new means for overcoming the most serious obstacles impeding development and
international economic co-operation. The harmonious development of the entire
world in the final decade of the twentieth century would depend not only on
military and political factors and on the demilitarizatioI. of internatic,al
relations, but also on the ability of the international community to provide an
adequate collective response to economic and social problems. As the Minister for
Foreign Affairs of Bulgaria had pointed out in his statement, the United Nations
had sufficient mechanisms for stimulating international economic interaction and
was in a position L~ make a significant contribution to the democratization of
international economic co-operation and its organization on the basis of mutual
advantage.

83. The World Economic Survey, 1989 showed that world output and world trade had
grown, respectively, by 4.3 per cent and 8.3 per cent. Those figures indicated an
encouraging trend in world economic development. However, while those figures were
based above all on the high growth rates of some States, the majority of African
and Latin American countries had experienced a decline in their per capita income.
Many of the poor countries had become even poorar or had remained at the same
level. In many of those countries, foreign debt, unemployment and other social
problems had become uncontrollable.

84. Bulgaria fully supported the proposals for intensifying the efforts of the
international community to solve the external debt problem of the developing
countries. Its solution was vital for achieving sustained economic and ecological
growth and the well-being of the entire world.

85. The reports that had been submitted by the Ad Hoc Committee of the Whole for
the Preparation of the International Development Strategy for the Fourth United
Nations Development Decade indicated that its work appeared to be entering a phase
of greater concreteness and content. The following should be borne in mind when
preparing the Strategy: it should be practice-oriented and functional and should
also have realistic goals and depend more fully on qualitative indicators. Those
criteria were also applicable to the preparc.tory work for the special session of
the General Assembly devoted to international economic co-operation. While that
session would focus on the most urgent socio-economic problems of the developing
countries, it should ~lso be an important stage in the developm~\~t of international
economic relations in general. His delegation trusted that the ~inal document of
that session would include general recommendations and principles that were

/ ...

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.2/44/SR.5
English
Page 21

(Mr. Sotirovc Bulgaria)

relevant to the work of the various United Nations bodies, so as to consolidate
multilateral economic co-operation and attached particular importance to the idea
of international economic security.

86. Degradation of the environment and the unfavourable impact of society's
activities all the basic ecological structures were c10fiely linked to other global
problems. They required that all States should adopt a wise and practical
ecological policy and maintain the fullest international co-operation in that
field. His delegation supported the concept of international ecological security,
which did not contradict the ideas and proposals of other States. It proposed that
the following elements, among others, should be considered and included: the free
transfer of ecologically safe technologies, the lifting of discriminatory
restrictions in the implementation of environmental protection projects, financial
concessions to the developing countries for trade in technological innovations and
widening the range of the developed countries' technological assistance, including
assistance linked to industrial co-operation and information.

87. The second United Nations conference on environment and development should
play a significant role in extending international co-operation and should
formulate concrete recommendations to Governments for outlining joint projects and
for establishing an international economic environment conducive to the sustainable
development of all States. It should he noted that from 16 October to 3 November
an important international meeting on the environment would be held at Sofia which
would be important not only regional1y, but also internationally, as the efforts of
all F.uropean States would no doubt help to establish the guidelines for
environmental protection activities.

88. Lastly, he pointed out that an in-depth process for the restructuring of
BUlgaria's economy and its management was under way in Bulgaria. Its purpose was
to improve the efficien~y of the economic system, extend democracy in public and
political life and achieve a qualitative improvemer.r in the standard of living.
Those reforms were intended to expand Bulgari~a's international activities and
intensify its economic and trade relations with all States. It was to be hoped
that those goals could be achieved by accelerating the introduction of
technological innovations, and by decentralizing management on the basis of
self-management and self-financing on the part of producers. One of the main
characteristics of that process of change was the stronger orientation 0f the
economy towards market mechanisms and towards the integration of domestic and
foreign markets. The steps that Bulgaria had taken to join the General Agreement
on Tariffs and Trude (GATT) and to establish official relations with the European
Economic Community were tangible proof of its interest in maintaining mutually
advantageous economic, technical and scientific co-operation.

/ ...

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.2/44/SR.S
English
Page 22

ORGANIZATION OF WORK

89. The CHAIRMAN said that the general debate would continue in the following week
and that, although the speakers' list had been closed, ~hree delegations had
requested permission to be included. If there were no objections, he would take it
that the Committee was in favour of permitting those delegations to take part in
the debate.

90. It was so decided.

The meeting rose at 1.05 p.m.

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library




